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Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The Members of 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

L We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bajaj Finserv Heatth Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ("the Financial Statements"). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss 
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

4. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report 

5. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

6. 
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Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements 

7. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, 
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian accounting standards ("Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

8. In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

11.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

11.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such -controls. 
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11.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

11.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

11.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current year and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Other matters 

15. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 were not audited by us. 
These financial statements have been audited by another auditor, whose report dated 26 April 2021 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion on the Financial 
Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

17. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat: 
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17.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

17.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account. 

17.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

17.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

17.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B". 

17.7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

18. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

18.1. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.; 

18.2. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

18.3. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

18.4. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has 
come to our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement. 
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18.5. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our 
notice that such representation contains any material misstatement. 

18.6. The Company has not paid and/ or declared dividend during the year. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Vinit KJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 
UDIN: 22145911AHTLW5190 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv 
Health Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Referred to in paragraph 16 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 
report of even date) 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE"). 

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are 
verified in a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the programme, certain PPE were physically verified by the management during 
the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable 
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the 
name of the Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the 
year. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of providing bundled product and other services and does not 
have any physical inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to it. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
does not have sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions which are 
secured on the basis of any security. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to it. 

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not made investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year including other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company 
has not granted any loans covered, made any investments or provided any guarantees and 
securities under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public 
during the year in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of 
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, 
the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts 
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues 
have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities in 
all cases during the year 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, 
duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
statutory dues, which have not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority on account 
of any dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across 
any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. (a) In our opinion, the Company did not have any outstanding loans or other borrowings to 
financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank 
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender. 

(c.) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any money by way of term loans, during the year. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by 
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company does not have any 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ix)(e) and 
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. 
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares I fully / partly / 
optionally convertible debentures during the year. 

xi. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been 
no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit 
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xvi. (a) In ouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IAof the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xvii. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
without obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. 

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, in the group (in accordance with 
Core Investment Companies (CIC's) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 16 companies 
forming part of the promoter/promoter group of the Company which are CICs. Further, as 
informed these CIC's are unregistered CICs as per Para 9.1 of Notification No. RBl/2020-21/24 
dated 13 August 2020 of the Reserve Bank of India. 
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xviii. During the year, M/s SR BC & Co LLP, the Statutory auditors of the Company have resigned 
with effect from 27 October 2021. As informed, there have been no issues, objections or 
concerns raised by the said outgoing auditors. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the provision of CSR is not applicable to the Company. 
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xxi. Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Vinit KJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 
UDIN: 22145911AHTLW5190 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors' report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Referred to in paragraph "17.6" under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 

report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv 

Health Limited ("the Company") as at 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 

Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 

31 March 2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the 

Guidance Note"). 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

3. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note and the Standards on Auditing ("SA"), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. 
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6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

7. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial 

Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 

the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to 

the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

~ 
Vinit KJain 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 145911 
UDIN: 22145911AHTLW5190 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2022 

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India 
T: + 91 22 61437333 E: info@kkcllp.inW: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN-AAP-2267 

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Right of Use Asset 

Other intangible assets 

Intangible assets under development 

Financial assets 

i. Other financial assets 

Other non-cun·ent assets 
CuITcnt tax assets 
Total non-current assets 
Current assets 
Financial assets 
i. Investments 
ii. Trade receivables 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 
iv. Other financial assets 
Other cun-ent assets 
Total current assets 
Tota I assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Instruments entirely equity in nature 
Other eauitv 
Total equity 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 
i. lease Liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i. Trade payables 

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

ii. lease Liabilities 
iii. Other current financial Jiabilitie.s 
Provisions 
Other cun·cn l liabilitics 
Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total eouity and liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the tlnanclal statements 
As per our report of even date 

Note No As at March 31, As al March 31, 
2022 2021 

3 830.56 416.33 

4 1,395.49 363.02 

5 2,054.03 1,445. 70 

5 - 201.29 

6(a) 306.88 40.64 

8 l,785.09 1,131.40 
83 ,60 2.63 

6.455.65 3.601.01 

6(c) 260.78 100.87 
6(d) 889.43 225.05 
6(e) 1,599.66 315.96 
6(b) 25.00 64.88 

9 885.21 209.83 
3.660.08 916.59 

10.115.73 4.517.60 

lO(a) 250.00 250.00 
JO(c) 23,750,00 8,750.00 
10(b) (20,487.98) (7.471 . 1 J) 

3 512.02 1.528.89 

ll(a) 974.46 295.96 
974.46 295.'16 

I l(c) 
3.23 17.33 

2,351.34 1,083.87 

I !(a) 399.47 94.39 
1 l(b) 1,295.71 869.50 

12 & 13 J,ORl.90 362 96 
14 497.60 264 70 

5.629.25 2.692.75 
6,,603.71 2.988.71 

10J15.73 4 517.611 

2 

On behalf of the Board orDirectors.Y For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO LlP 
Chat1crcd Accountants 
!CAI Finn's Registration Numbcr.105146WIWJ0062 1 ~ . ,.~1 1 

Dcvang Mody V.Rajagopalan 

liP 
Vinit KJain 
Partner 
Membership No.: 145911 
Mumbai: 25 April 2022 

Director Director 
DIN:07794726 D!N:02997795 

Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 
Pune; 25 April 2022 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income 

Expenses 

Finance costs 

Employee benefits expense 

Depreciation and am01tisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Loss before tax 
Income tax expense 

- Cu!Tent tax 
- Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

Loss for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Basic earnings per share (In INR) 
Diluted earnings per share (ln lNR) 
(Nominal value per share INR 101 

Note No 

15 

16 

20 

17 

18 

19 

13 

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 2 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For period ended For year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

8,789.90 994.04 

30.96 54.14 

8,820.86 1,048.18 

66.45 47.48 

6,418.45 2,897.79 

1,256.27 612.54 

14.024.64 3,804.78 

21,765.81 7,362.59 
(12,944.95) (6,314.41' 

- -
- -
- -

(12,944.951 (6.314.41) 

(71.92) 5.15 

(71.92) 5.15 

(13,016.87) (6,309.26) 

(517 .80) (252.58) 
(517.80) (252.58) 

For KHTMJI KUNVERJI & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

On behalf of the Board of Dlrectors--y' 

ICAI Firm's Registration Number.105146W/W100621 

Vinit K Jain 
Partner 
Membership No.: 145911 
Mumbai: 25 April 2022 

~ ~~ 
Devang Mody V.Rajagopalan 
Director Director 
DIN:07794726 DIN:02997795 

~-
Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 
Pune: 25 April 2022 



Bajaj Finscrv Health Limited 
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Loss before income lax from Continuing operations 

Loss before income tax 
Adjustments for 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Unwinding of discount on secmity deposits 
Interest income classified as investing cash flows 
Finance costs 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 
Increase in trade payables 
(Increase) in trade receivables 
Increase in other financial assets and liabilities 
(Increase) in other assets 
(Decrease)/ increase in other liabilities 
Increase in employee benefit obligations 
Increase in provisions 

Cash e;enerated from operations 
Income taxes oaid 
Net cash inflow from operatine; activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Interest received on fixed deposits 
Net cash outflow from investin2 activities 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from funds from holding company 
Finance cost paid 
Repayment oflease liabilities 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financinl! activities 
Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 
Cash iind cash cquiva lcnls at the bcuinninJ? of the financial year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances per statement of cash flows 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(12.944.95) (6.3 I 4.41) 
(12.944.95) (6,314.41) 

1,256.27 612.54 
(9.94) (7.79) 

(16.16) (4.39) 
(4.86) (5. I 3) 
66.45 47.48 

1,253.56 1,194.00 
(664. 18) (223.90) 
201.22 238.53 

(1,329.08) (862.37) 
232.90 (0.79) 
-71.92 132.39 
718.94 168.13 

(11,311.75) (5,025.71) 
(80.97) (2.63) 

(11,392.72) (5,028.34) 

(1,979.93) (1,202.24) 
(550.00) (2,150.00) 
400.00 2,257.71 

4.86 5.13 
(2,125.07) (1,089.40) 

15,000.00 5,500.00 
(66.45) (47.48) 

(132.06) (83.21) 
14.801.49 5,369.31 

1,283.70 (748.43) 
315.96 1,064.39 

1,599.66 315.96 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2022 2021 

1,599.66 315.96 
1,599.66 315.96 

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

On behalf of the Board of Direclors C\,/ 

~~ ~ 
~ 

For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm's Registration Numbcr.105146W/Wl00621 

~:/"~ 
~~1~ 
Partner 
Membership No.: 145911 
Mumbai: 25 April 2022 

DevangMody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

~;a 
Finance Head 

Pune: 25 April 2022 

V.Rajagopalan 
Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Statement of changes In equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity share capital 

Particulars Note No 

As at March 3 I, 2020 
Changes in cuuitv share e<mital [0 la) 

As at March 31, 2021 
Changes in cquitv share caoital 
As at March 31, 2022 

B. Instruments entirely equity In nature 

Particulars Note No 

At the beginning of the year 
Addition during lhe veur IO(c) 
Closing Balance 

No of shares (In Amount 
lakhsl 

25.00 250.00 

25.00 250.00 
. 

25.00 250,00 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

8,750.00 3,250.00 
15.000.00 5.500.00 
23.750.00 8.750.00 

"'EquiLy component of loan received represents loan received from Bajaj Finserv Limited compulsorily convertible into equity shares al face valu~ of Rs. I 0 per share 

C. Other equity 

Particulars Note No Reserves and surplus 

Retained earnings 

Balance at March 31, 2020 
Loss for the year IO(b) 

Olher comorehensive income 
Total comorehenslve Income for the oerlod 
Recognition of share based payments to employees 27 
Pavmenl towards share based pavment 

Balance at March 31. 2021 
Loss for the year 10 (b) 
Other comprehensive income 
Toto! comnrehenslve Income for the neriod 
Recognition of share based paymenls to employees 27 
Pavment towards share based oavment 

Balance at Marcil JI . 2022 

Summary of significant accounting po1icies foHowt:d by the Compuny 
The accompanying notes are Integral part or the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For KHJMJI KUNVERJI & CO LLP 
Chnrtcred Accountants 

ICAT Firm's Registrnlion Number. I 05 l46W/WI 0062 i 

11 , 161 ,85) 
(6,314.41) 

5. 15 
17 471 .11\ 

. 
<7.471 .11) 

( 12,944.95) 
(71.92) 

120.487.98\ 

(20.487.98) 

Share based payments 
reserve 

Dcvang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

221.12 
(221 .12) 

. 

. 

. 
702.70 

(702.70) 

o.oo 

Vinit KJain 
Partnc1· 

~ 
Membership No.: 1459 i i 
Mumbai: 25 April 2022 

Finnncc ll c11tl 

Puno: 25 Aprll 2022 

Total other equity 

(1,161 .R.1) 
(6,314.41) 

5.1' 
17 471.1 I) 

221.12 
(221.12) 

11471.11) 
( 12,944.95) 

(71.92\ 
120,487.9H) 

702.70 
(702 .711) 

(20 487.9~) 

V.Rajagopaian 
Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

1. The Company overview 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited (the "Company"}, is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on July 05, 
20 I 9. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 'Bajaj Finserv Limited' (Holding Company). The Company 
is operating in the Health Ecosystem and creates integrated healthcare solutions to improve and manage 
healthcare outcomes with technological intervention. The Company is engaged in business of marketing, 
promoting and selling Healthcare plans/products including preventive healthcare, management of illness, loyalty 
cards, telemedicine, through online and/or through network of providers I pa1iners. The CIN number of the 
Company is U85320PN2019PLC 185286. 

The Registered Office of the company is at Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune, 411035, 
Maharashtra, and its Corporate Office is at 4th Floor, Phoenix Fountainhead, Off Nagar Road, Viman Nagar, 
Pune-411014, Maharashtra. 

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 25th April, 
2022. 

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(i) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 a as amended from time to time and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for ce1iain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value . 

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

The financial statements correspond to the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, "Presentation of 
Financial Statements". For clarity, various items are aggregated in the statement of profit and loss and balance 
sheet. These items are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also the Company's functional currency 
· and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented 

throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the 
absolute figures. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Act. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification 
of assets and liabilities. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company 
shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered 
a wide range ofinfonnation relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, 
cash flows and capital funding available from the Holding company. The outbreak of COVID-19 has not affected 
the going concern assumption of the Company. 



(ii) Use of estimates and judgment 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimates are made or revised. Information about significant areas of estimation, 
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are included in the notes. 

Detailed information about each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with information 
about basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements: 

(1) Revenue recognition 
(2) Impairment testing 
(3) Deferred taxes 
(4) Defined benefit plans and compensated absences 
(5) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
(6) Useful lives of intangible assets 
(7) Provision for estimate toward expected OPD and diagnostic claims 
(8) Expected Credit Loss 

3. Significant accounting policies 

i. Revenue Recognition: 

The Company recognizes revenues from contracts with customers, as per Ind AS 115 following five step 
approach: 

(1) identify the contract with a customer, 
(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, 
(3) determine the transaction price, 
(4) allocate the transaction price to the perfonnance obligations in the contract, and 
(5) recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied. 

At inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a customer to identify separate 
performance obligations. The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or service 
promised to a customer is capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the 
promised products or services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. The Company 
allocates the arrangement consideration to separately identifiable perfonnance obligations based on their relative 
stand-alone selling price or residual method. Standalone selling prices are determined based on sale prices for 
the components when it is regularly sold separately. In cases where the Company is unable to determine the 
stand-alone selling price, the Company uses expected cost-plus margin approach in estimating the stand-alone 
selling price. I 

The Company derives revenue mainly from the following sources: 

Bundled Product 

Bundled Product under the nomenclature of Aarogya Care or its variants (erstwhile known as Managed Care) is 
a comprehensive offering in the Health ecosystem and comprises benefits such as Insurance, OPD, Laboratory 
benefit, Loyalty card, access to HealthRx mobile app and website. 

Co-Branded Card I Loyalty card 

Cobranded card, Loyalty card or its variants, offer a small ticket size health management solution, en-compassing 
health benefits such as discounts at Outpatient department (OPD), Inpatient department (IPD), Pharmacy, 
Laboratory test etc. 



Revenue on product sales are recognised when the customer obtains control of the specified product. 

Revenues are shown net of GST and cancellation of policies sold if any. Insurance component comprised in the 
product price is not considered in the revenue as it is sold under the passthrough arrangement between the 
Company and the Group's insurance Company. 

Company uses point in time approach to recognise the revenue, since there are no unsatisfied performance 
obligations pending after sale of product. The control of product is immediately transferred to customer at the 
time of sale of product. Company recognises partner pay-outs provision on estimate basis. A refund liability is 
measured at the amount of consideration received (or receivable) for which the entity does not expect to be 
entitled and such amount is deducted from revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

The Company assesses the timing of the transfer of services to the customer as compared to the timing of 
payments to determine whether a significant financing component exists. As a practical expedient, the Company 
does not assess the existence of a significant financing component when the difference between payment and 
provision of service is up-to I 2 months. If the difference in timing arises for reasons other than the provision of 
finance to either the customer or the Company, no financing component is deemed to exist. 

Contract asset and liabilities 

The Company classifies its right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or a contract 
asset. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional. A right to consideration is unconditional if 
only the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due. 

ii. Foreign currency transactions and translation 

Functional and presentational currency 

The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the Company. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional cmTency 
at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to 
other income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot 
exchange rates as at the date ofrecognition. 

iii. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation/ amortisation 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are can-ied at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any, consistent with the criteria specified in lnd AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. 

a) Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item is expected to flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under other income/expenses in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 



b) Depreciation 

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis 
from the date the assets are available for use. Depreciation on assets added/disposed during the period is provided 
on pro rata basis with reference to the month in which such asset is added/disposed. 

Estimates are used for computing asset's expected useful life and expected residual value at the end of its life. 
The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annually. 

The estimated useful life are as follows: 

• Leasehold Improvements - Period of lease 
• Computers - 3 years 
• Others - Furniture, Networking installations, Vehicle and Office equipment- 3 to 10 years . 

Leasehold improvement assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of asset or the relevant lease term, 
whichever is lower. 

iv. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The useful life is estimated 
based on number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic 
factors such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. The estimated useful life of 
amortisable intangibles is reviewed and where appropriate are adjusted, annually. 

For internally developed intangibles, such as software, platforms, applications, expenditure pertaining to research 
is charged to the Statement of profit and loss. Development costs are capitalised as an intangible asset if it can 
be demonstrated that the project is expected to generate future economic benefits, it is probable that those future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the costs of the asset can be measured reliably, else it is charged to 
the Statement of profit and loss. 

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years, which is the 
management's estimate of its useful life. The useful life of an intangible asset is reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted prospectively. 

An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the 
canying value of relevant asset is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down 
accordingly. 

v. Financial instruments 

a) Non-derivative financial instruments: 

Non-derivative financial instruments consist of: 

•Financial assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, employee and other advances, and 
non-current assets; Financial assets are derecognised when substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset have been transferred. In cases where substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
assets are neither transferred nor retained, financial assets are derecognised only when the Company has not 
retained control over the financial asset. 

• Financial liabilities, which include trade payables, eligible current and non-current liabilities. 

•Non- derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. 



a. Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks, 
which can be withdrawn at any time, without prior notice or penalty on the principal. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand 
deposits with banks, and are considered part of the Company's cash management system. 

b. Investments 

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses 
arising on re-measurement recognised in Statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss on disposal is recognised 
in Statement of profit and loss. Interest income is also recognised in Statement of profit and loss for FVTPL 
instruments. 

c. Other financial assets: 

Other financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after 
the repot1ing date which are presented as non-current assets. These are initially recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. These 
comprise trade receivables and other assets. 

d. Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently caITied at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. For these financial instruments, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 
to the short-term maturity of these instruments. 

vi. Equity 

a) Share capital 

The authorised share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 500 Lakhs divided into 50 Lakhs equity 
shares of Rs 10 each. Every holder of the equity shares, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date 
of the shareholder meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in 
the shareholder meeting. 

b) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes. 

vii. Impairment 

a) Financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets 
carried at amortised cost for e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank balances. The impairment methodology 
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide 
for the same in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables 

The application of simplified approach does not require Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impai1ment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, credit 
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. The 12-



month ECL is a portion of lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months 
after reporting date. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/ income in 
the statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'Other expenses' in the statement of 
Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instrnments is described below: 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost and revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as 
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. Until the asset meets write off criteria, 
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

b) Non - financial assets 

The Company assesses long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment and acquired intangible assets 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or 
group of assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the asset or group of assets. 

viii. Employee benefits 

a) Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Pensions and other post-employment benefits are 
classified as defined benefit plans. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company's obligation to provide agreed 
benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks are borne by the Company. The present 
value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. 

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains or losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are 
immediately recognised in other comprehensive income, net of taxes and permanently excluded from profit or 
loss. Instead net interest recognised in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets 
above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through 
other comprehensive income, net of taxes. 

The Company has the following employee benefit plans: 

a) Gratuity 
Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund, which fully 
covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life Insurance Corporation oflndia {LIC) 
and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC 
and BALIC as compared to the liability based on an independent actuarial valuation is recognized as a liability. 

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the rep011ing period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method in conformity 
with the principles and manner of computation specified in Ind AS 19. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

The Company contributes to two defined contribution plans for its employees: 

Contribution to provident fund is made to Government Provident Fund Authority 



The Company recognises contribution payable to these fund/ schemes as an expenditure when an employee 
renders the related service. lfthe contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet 
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after 
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment 
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

c) Compensated absences 

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion 
of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods. The Company records an 
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this 
entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that 
the Company expects to pay because of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting 
period. The Company recognises accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method. Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which the 
absences occur. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet as it does not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 

d) Employee stock option scheme 

The fair value of options granted under the Bajaj Finserv Limited -Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESOS) 
is recognised as an employee benefits expenses with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be 
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted: 

• including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity's share price). 
• excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions (e.g., continuance of an 

employee of the entity over a specified period), and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. 

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of number of options that 
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the 
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

ix. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount to be recognised as provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When the likelihood of outflow of resources 
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

The Company accrues the estimated cost of provisions (OPD, diagnostic, telemedicine or similar healthcare) at 
the time when the revenue is recognised. The accruals are based on the Company's experience, benefits offered 
in the product and industry practices. Provision amount for OPD, diagnostic, telemedicine or similar healthcare 
is derived based on the respective components considered in product pricing. Provisioning amounts are tracked 
periodically and actual utilisations, if any, are adjusted against provision amount. If the customer does not utilize 
the benefit, the unused provision is reversed once the product period expires or at the end of contract term. 

Finance cost 

Finance cost comprise notional interest cost on lease liabilities as per IND AS 116. Gain or loss arising on re
measurement of financial assets at FVTPL. 

x. Other income 

The Company recognises income on accrual basis . 



Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

a) Current income tax 

Current income tax for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered by the taxation 
authorities based on the taxable income/ (loss) for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date and applicable for 
the period. The Company offsets cmTent tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset 
and liability simultaneously. 

b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax, if any, is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or 
loss at the time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred income tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset 
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
The Company offsets deferred income tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on 
either the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the current tax 
liabilities 

xi. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period adjusted for treasury shares held. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average 
number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period. 

xii. Cash flow statement 

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The amendment to Ind AS 7, require entities 
to provide disclosures about changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes 
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). 

xiii. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
Core Management Committee which includes the Managing Director who is the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker. The Company operates only in one segment in Health ecosystem and has operations only in 
India, with same risk, rewards and returns, hence, the Segment reporting is not presented. 

xiv. Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 



Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. The Company recognises 
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

a) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 
includes the amount of lease 1 iabilities recognised, initial direct costs incuned, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impai1ment. Refer to the accounting policies in para 6. Impairment of 
non-financial assets. 

b) Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value 
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in 
substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to 
be paid under residual value guarantees. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced 
for the lease payments made. 

As a practical expedient in para 15 of Ind AS 116, Company has not separated non-lease components from lease 
components, and instead account for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single 
lease component 

xv. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investment in mutual funds at fair value at each balance 
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, 
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The 
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable 



For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 



Bajaj Finsen' Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 3: Property, 11lant and equipment 

Particulars Computers Furniture and 
Fixtures 

Gross Block 
As at March 31, 2020 51 72 59 44 
Additions 71 76 0 67 
Disposals/ movement - -
As at March 31. 2021 123.48 60.I I 
Additions 280_39 27.38 
Disoosals/ movement -
As at March 31, 2022 403.87 87.49 

Accumulated Depreciation 
As at March 31, 2020 5_87 2.62 
Additions 26.15 5.96 
Disposals/ movements -
As at March 31 2021 32.02 8.58 
Additions 90.34 7 89 
Disposals/ movements - -
As at March 31, 2022 122.36 16.47 

Net Block 
Net book value as at March 31. 2021 \ 91.46 51.53 
Net book value as at March 31, 2022 281.51 71.02 
*No revaluat10n m current or prev10us year 

Note 4: Right or Use Asset 
(All amounts in lNR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Leasehold Total 
Premises 

Gross Block 
As at March 31 , 2020 544_56 544.56 
Additions -
Disposals/ movement 
As at March 31. 2021 544.56 544.56 
Additions 1,353 98 1,353.98 
Disposals/ movement 187.96 187.96 
As at March 31, 2022 1,710,58 1,710.58 
Accumulated Depreciation . 
As at March 31, 2020 72.61 72.61 
Additions 108.93 108.93 
Disposals/ movements - -
As at March 31, 2021 181.54 181.54 
Additions 166 82 166 82 
Disposals/ movements 33_27 33 27 
As at March 31 2022 315.09 315.09 
Net Block . 
Net book value as at March 31. 2021 363.02 363.02 
Net book value as at March 31, 2022 l,395.49 1,395.49 

Leasehold Plant and 
Improvements Machinery 

162 39 101.42 
23 89 9.40 

- -
186.28 l 10.82 
67,62 32.92 

-
253.90 143.74 

16.24 6 24 
35.47 21 06 

-
51.71 27.30 
48.59 26 17 

-
100.30 53.47 

134.57 83.52 
153.60 90.27 
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omce Vehicles Total 
equipment 

53.26 428 23 
0_94 18 34 125.00 

- -
54.20 18.34 553.23 
35 39 17 1.86 615 56 

- - -
89.59 190.20 1J68.79 

5.59 . 36.56 
10.83 0.87 100_34 

- - -
16.42 0.87 136.90 
15.70 12-64 201 33 

- - -
32.12 13.51 338.23 

37.78 17.47 416.33 
57.47 176.69 830.56 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated) 

Note 5: lntangil>le assets 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Computer 
sortware 

Gross Block 
As at March 3 I, 2020 14,61 
Additions -
Disposals/ movement -
As at March 31, 2021 14.61 
Additions 0 45 
Disposals/ movement -
As a t March 31, 2022 15.06 
Accumulated Amortisation 
As at March 3 J , 2020 1.50 
Additions 4,87 
Disposals/ movement . 
As at March 31. 2021 6.37 
Additions 5.01 
Disposals/ movement -
As at March 31, 2022 11.38 

Net Block 
Net book value as at March 31. 2021 8.24 
Net book value as at March 31. 2022 3,68 
-No revaluation in current or previous year 
*Intangible assets under development are internally generated assets 

Internally Intangible 
generated assets under 
intangible development* 
asset 

25.08 985 55 
1,812.17 201.29 

. -985 55 
1,837.25 201.29 
1,294.62 -

201.29 -201 .29 
3,333.16 . 

1.40 . 
398 39 

-
399.79 . 
883 02 -

1.282.81 . 

1,437.46 201.29 
2,050.35 -

As at 
31 March 2022 

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a oeriod of 
Less than 1 

l-2years 2-3 years 
vear 

Projects in progress . - -
Total - . -

As at 
31 March 2021 

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a oeriod of 
Less than 1 

1-2years 2-3 years 
vear 

Projects in progress 201.29 - . 
Total 201.29 - . 

Total 

J ,025 24 
2,013.46 
-985 55 

2,053.15 
1,295 07 

-
3,348.22 

2 90 
403 26 

406.16 
888 03 

-
l,294,19 

1,646.99 
2.054.03 

More than 3 
vears 

-

More than 3 
vears 

. 
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Total 

-
-

Total 

201.29 
201.29 



Bajaj F'inserv Health Limited 
Noles to Financial statemenls for lhe year ended Mnrch 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR \akhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Nole 6: Financial assets 

Note 6(a): Other Financial Assets - No11-c111·re111 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Securitv deposits 

TotaJ Other Financial asset 

Note 6(b): Other Financial Assels - current 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Parlicuhu"S 

Bank deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months* 
Olher financial assets 
Total Other Financial asset 

As at March 31, 
2022 

306_88 

306-88 

As at March 31, 
2022 

25 00 

-
25.00 

*Of which Rs 25 lakh pertatns lo short term deposit, placed with the bank as security towards bank guarantee 

Nole 6(c): Current Investments 

Particulars As stt March 31, 
2022 

Investment in mutual funds 
Mutual Funds (At Fair Vah1e lhrou~h P&L) 
Ouoted 
5,359, 15 (March 31, 2021: 1789 22) units in L&T Liquid Fund Direcl Plan-Growth 156 22 

4,066,88 (March 31, 2021: 2028 69) units in IDFC Cash Fund Direct Plan-Growth 104 56 

Toutl (111u1111tl fundsl 26.0.78 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 260. 78 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 260 78 

All 1m-eS1 me11ls mentioned above are w1thm Tndta 

Note 6(d): Trade Receiv•hles 

Particulars As at March 31, 
2022 

Trade receivables 869 53 
R.eceivables from related oarties 19,90 
Total receivables 889.43 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally received w1thm 365 days 

Breal-i.-un for lrndc r«rhr111Jlr.-s : 
Particulars As at March 31, 

2022 
Secured, considered good 
Unsecured, considered good 457 63 
Trade Receivables which have increase in credit risk 876 75 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

1,334.38 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 444 95 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired -

444.95 
Total Trade receivables 889.43 

Trade receivables ageing schedule 

Particulars 

Not due 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-which have sie.nificant increase in credit risk 772 89 
Gross Trade receivables 772.1!9 

Less: lmoairment Allowance (~llowance for bad and doubtf!lldebts) 
Tr11de receiv111hl~ net of Imrutlrment All.Dwance 

Particulars 

Not due 

(i) Undisouted Trade receivables- considered 1rnod 112-47 
ii) Undisouted Trade R~ceivabJes-which have siR!lificant.increa.s_e in creditrisk 15.5> 
Gross Trude receivables 128.02 
Less: lmoairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Trade receivables net or Jmnairment Allowance 

As at March 31, 
2021 

40.64 
40,64 

As at March 31, 
2021 

25 00 
3g_gg 

64.88 

As at March 31, 
2021 

50 44 

5043 

100.87 
100 .87 

100 87 

As at March 31, 
2021 

122 95 

102 10 
225.05 

As at March 31, 
2021 

-
221 55 

17 68 

239,23 

-
14 t8 

14.18 
225.05 

31 March 2022 

Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 years Total 
months lyear 

448 85 8 78 457 63 
101.49 I 55 0.82 876 75 

55!1.34 10.lJ 0.82 l,334.38 
444 95 
889.43 

31 Marc~ 2021 
Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 years Total 
months I year 

t09 08 221 55 

2.-13 17 68 

lll.21 - 239.23 
14 t 8 

225.05 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes lo Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 6(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks 
- in current accounts 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

Note 7: Unrecognised Deferred tax assets 

Pa rticu la rs 

Deferred tax liabilities 
On account of timing differences in: 
Defined benefit plans provisions - OCI 
Fixed asset- impact of depreciation/ amortisation charged for financial reporting 
purpose 
Fair valuation of mutual funds including FMP 
Deferred tax assets 
Recognized to the extent of Deferred tax liabilitv 
Net deferred tax (liability)/ asset 

As at March As at March 
31 , 2022 31, 2021 

1,599 66 315 96 

- -
1.599.66 315.96 

Balance Sheet 

As at March As at March 
31, 2022 31, 2021 

(1.34) ( 1.34) 
(165.01) (76.85) 

(1 95) 

168.29 78 19 

- -

Statement of orofit and loss 
As at March As at March 
31, 2022 31, 2021 

0.00 1.34 
88. 16 73.71 

1.95 

(90 10) {75.05) 

- -

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities ifand only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together 
with future tax planning strategies 

Note 8: Other non-current assets 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 
31. 2022 31. 2021 

OST credit receivable 1,476,35 808 19 
Prepayment to gratuity fund 59.81 178.07 
Prepayment toward share based payment (Refer note 27) 248 .93 68.34 
Capital advance - 76,80 

Total other non current assets 1,785.09 1,131.40 

Note 9: Other current assets 

Particulars 
As at March Asal March 
31,2022 31 , 2021 

Prepaid expenses 219.6 1 57.41 
Prepayment toward share based payment (Refer note 27) 205,97 62 .62 
Supplier advances• 393.07 88 .21 
OST deposits 66,56 1,59 

Total other current assets 885.21 209.83 
*Advances to related parties contnbute to 74% of suppl 1er advances as on March 31 , 2022 (March 31, 2021: 99%) 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless othe1wise staled) 

Note 10: Equity share capital and other equity 

IO(a) Equity share capital 
A111hori...,.cU. h~mcd. Subscribed nruJ uui1I un ctmil"l' shnrc cauit:1 I 
Particulars As at March 31, 

2022 
Authorised 
50.00,000 equitv shares of Rs 10 each 500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fullv paid up 
25,00,000 equity shares of Rs I 0 each (PY 25,00,000 250,00 
em1itv shares) 

250.00 

As at March 31, 
2021 

500.00 

250.00 

250.00 

Iii Reco 11cil1:11ion of the ~ har·c.• ouMandirw at the hc!!irmi n!! nnd 11t th~ ~udofthc vcur 
Particulars Number of Equity share 

shares (in Jakhs) capital 
(par value) 

As at March 31. 2020 25 250.00 
Equity share capital issued, subscribed and fully paid up - -
during the vear 
As at March 31. 2021 25 250.00 
Equity share capital issued, subscribed and fully paid up - -
during the year 

As at March 31. 2022 25 250.00 

Terms and rights attached to equity shares 
Equity shares have a par value ofINR I 0 They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the company in proportion to the 
number of and amounts paid on the shares held. 

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote 

(iii Sl.wr~s of the conmany bcM by holdlne compnnv 
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2022 (in lakhs) 2021 (in lakhs) 

Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 25 
(immediate and ultimate holding comoanv) 

(iii) Details of sh :i rd111ldcnr holtlln!! more than 5% sh:11·es in the com oan\' 
Particulars As a t March 31. 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Number of % holding Number or % holding 
shares (in lakhs) shares (in lakhs) 

Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 100% 25 100% 
I (immediate and ultimate holding company) 

iv) Dct:iils of 11romoter shn rcl1ohli ng 
Promoter name As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Number of % holding % change Number of % holding % change 
shares (in lakhs) during the year shares (in lakhs) during the year 

Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 100% 0% 25 100% 0% 
(immediate and ultimate holding company) 

IOlbl Rescn•es ancl surnlu.• 
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2022 2021 
Retained earnings (20,487.98) (7.471 11) 
Total reserves and surplus 120.487.981 17,471.11\ 

n I d eta ne ~arrune.s 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2022 2021 

Opening balance (7,471 II) (1,161 85) 
Net profit/ (loss) for the period (12,944 95) (6,314.41) 
Items of other comprehensive income recognised 
directly in retained earnings 
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit (71.92) 5, 15 
obligation, net of tax 
Total Retained earnings (20.487.98) (7 471.lJ) 

IOlcl Instruments cntirclv in cnuin• 
Particulars As at March 31, .JAs at March 31, 

2022 . 2021 
Opening balance 8,750.00 3,250.00 
Add: Additions during the vear 15.000,00 5,500.00 
Closing balance 23.750.00 8,750.00 



Baiai Finserv Heellh Limited 
Notes to Financial st11tements for the ve11r ended Miu·ch 31, 2022 
(All amounts in rNR lakhs, Unless 01hi:rwise stated) 

Note 11: Financial Li11bilities 

Note ll(a): Leue Li11bilities 

Following is the breakup of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31. 2022 and March 31, 2021 

Particulars AsatM11rchJl 1 As at March 31 , 

20.Zl 1021 

Current lease liabilities 399 47 94 39 

Non Current lease liabilities 974 46 295.96 
Total I 373_93 390.JS 

Following is movemcnl in lease liabililics during period ended March 31, 2022 and Mardi 31 , 2021 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2021 2011 

Opening balance 390 35 473 56 

Additions 1,272 80 

Delelions 157.14 
Finance cost accrued durinc the period 66 45 47 48 

11.nmcnl ar k.Jl~tJ. liabilities 19R 53 130 69 
Total I 313-93 390 l" 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturiries of lcasc liabilities as al March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 

on an undiscounted basis 

Particulars As at March 31 , As at March 31 , 
2022 202-1 

Less than one vear 414 07 136 41 

One to five years 1,399 93 341 38 
More than five years 
Total 1 814.00 •11.10 

1 l(b) Other current financisll liabilities 

PArtkuL&n As at March ll , As et March 31, 
2021 2021 

l!ti4>lm"" bo10fi1J payable 1,083 57 505 00 
Cnjli111t creditor 115 59 184 90 

Other 1>avublc!i ------·--·--------l-----''16"'."'5~,_.. ____ -'17.t.@L 
Tnu1I olhrr curr(!nl finrmtinl ti 1d:i iliri~-·--· 1.W!i.11 869..SO 
.. Otl~r pavable compnses of habd1tv for expenses 



Baiai Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in rNR Jakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

1 l(c) Trade pavables 

Particulars 

Trade payables 
·total outstandinA dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

'J'or11I tntd(' Ul\'Dbli:-! 

As at March Jt. As et March 31, 
Z022 2021 

3 23 17 33 
2.351 34 1,083 87 

2.354.~7 1.101.20 
11ruliJ pny:iiUICS l'lnJ non-interest bcarmg and arc gcnerall)· on tem1s of30 da)s from receipt of mvo1cc , 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2022 2021 

Trade payables 1.277 93 394,95 
Trade navables to related nartics CRefer note 231 1.0761\4 70~.25 

~!i~tk.P.avahlt".s 2.354.57 I 101.20 

The disclosure pursuant to the Micro, Sntall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, [MSMED Act] as at March 31, 
2022 and March 31, 2021 is as under: 

Particulars 

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid 
(b) Interest due there<m remaining unpaid 
(c) Interest paid by the Company in tenns of Section 16 of the MS MED Act, along with 
the amount of the payment made to lhe supplier beyond the appointed day 

(d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest 
specified under the MSMED Act 
(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 
(t') Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprises or the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 

Particulars: 

MSME 
Others 

MSME 

As at March 31, 
2022 
3 23 

As at March 31, 
2021 

17.33 

J uJh 1ul cd aut.1Juul1n lli 111t JI Mru-rh 2012 
Nut ' 'Cl dnr Ln~th•n I r11r Tohd 

323 J2J 
1,245.52 1 10582 2.351 J4 

IJmlf• 'ulcd ousl~nJlu 1 111U J1 ~fol'dl 021 
Nctr ~·ci t due l.eu t1u11i I 'Cllr 1"atn.1 

0 26 17 07 .17-33 
265 50 818 37 1.083 87 

'• ' :.. 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 12: Provisions 

Particulars As ~t March 31, As at March 31, 
2022 2021 

Provision for cancellation - 106.67 
Provision for diagnostic benefits 254.28 5.46 
Provision for OPD Benefits 542.92 82.39 
Total 797.20 194.52 

(i) Information about individual provisions and significant estimates 

Provision for diagnostic benefits 
Provision is made for estimated liabilities of servicing customers for diagnostic benefits at the end of the reporting period. 
Management estimates the provision based on any recent trends that suggest expected claims. 

Provision for OPD benefits 
Provision is made for estimated liabilities of servicing customers for OPD benefits at the end of the reporting period. 
Management estimates the provision based on any recent trends that suggest expected claims 

(ii) Movements in provisions 
M t h I f ovemen s m eac c ass o prov1s1011 d . th fi . I unng e manc1a year are se ou t b I e ow: 
Particulars Cancellation Provision for Provision for Total 

provision diagnostic benefit OPD benefits 

As at April 01, 2020 13.22 5.63 7.54 26.39 
Charged/( credited) to profit or loss 

-additional provisions recognised 106.67 5.71 83.28 195.66 
-unused amounts reversed - 5.60 7.51 13.11 

Amounts used during the year 13'.22 0.28 0.92 14.42 
As at March 31, 2021 106.67 5.46 82.39 194.52 
As at April 01, 2021 106.67 5.46 82.39 194.52 
Charged/( credited) to profit or loss 

-additional provisions recognised - 316.40 580.32 896.72 
-unused amounts reversed 26.67 2.89 68.92 98.48 

Amounts used during the year 80.00 64.69 50.87 195.56 
As at March 31, 2022 - 254.28 542.92 797.20 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limiled 

Notes lo Financial statemenls for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherv.rise staled) 

Note 13: Provisions 

Parliculars 

Provi<tion for comoensated absences 
Tola I employee benefit obli)!ations 

i) Defined benefit plans: 

a Gratuity -

Current I 

284 .10 I 

284.70 I 

As at March 31, 2022 

Non-current I Total 

- I 284 70 
I 284.70 

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has completed five years of service 
is entitled to specific benefits The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length or service, managerial grade and salary at retirement 

age 

MoVt'IU !!Jll in defined IJent'nt olJU~ nth.un 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 267 61 164 28 

Current service cost 99 56 57 06 

Interest on defined benefit obligations 18 11 II 11 

Remeasurement due to: 
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of financial assumption (32 37) 0 00 
Actuarial loss/( gain) arising on account of experience changes IOI 52 (4 32) 

Benefits paid (2 90) 0 00 

Liabilities assumed/ (settled)* 0 00 39 48 

Defined benelit obli2ation as at the end of the vear 451.53 267.61 

•on account of inter group transfer 

Mt1\ 'CITTl'HI in nl1tn n:m:its 
Particulars As al March 31, 2022 As al March 31, 2021 

Fair value of plan asset as at the beginning of the year 44~.68 349 54 

Employer contribution 49.42 40 46 

lnterest on plan assets 2 1.9 1 15 37 
Remeasurement due to: 
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets ( l 2~) 0 60 

Benefits paid (l . ~O) 0 00 

change in asset ceiling Q.5 1 0 23 
Assets acquired 0 OQ 39 48 

Fair value of plan asset as at the end of the vear 511.34 445.611 
*Assets acquired include receivable amount of Rs 12 l 12 Lakhs towards inter group transfer of senior employees 

Utt o11t illnc iun or nr1 l1 1t biti1,•/ ~~-ser 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Net defined benefit liability/( asset) as at the beginning of the year (178.07) (185 26) 

Expense charged to statement of profit and loss 95.76 52 80 
Amount recognised outside Profit and loss 71.92 (S IS) 

Employer contribution (49.42) (40 46) 

Remeasurement due to: 
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 0.00 -
Liabilities assumed/ (settled) 0.00 -
Net delined benefit liabilitv/lassel) as at the end of the vear (59.81 '178.07 

r. t::.x 11 l' 11 ~e!I i:h111·2ttl to lll r S l n(em~nl of t'ro 1t n.nd l...o~!I 

Particulars As al March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Current service cost 99.56 57 06 
Interest on net defined benefit liabilitv/ (asset) (3.80) (4 26) 

Expenses char~ed to the Statement of Prorit and Loss 95.76 52.80 

This space has been intentionally left blank 

As at March 31, 2U21 

Current I Non-current I Total 

168.441 . I 168-44 
168.44 I - I 168.44 



B11jaj Finserv llcallh Limilec.J 

NolC's to Financial SlllfC'menls for lhe year C'lldC'cf March 31 1 2022 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled) 

Urmras Ul'C'lllC'll l ilni ns./(liis~c-~) in oll1rr romm·c•lu•n$iYl" i11come 

Pnrliculars 

Acluarial loss/(ga in) arising on account of financial assumption 

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account or experience clrnnges 

Actual return 011 plan assets less interest on plan assets 

Adjustment to recol!nise effect or asset ceili nu 

I~~"('"""" clrnre.cd to lhe Statement or OCI 

t\ 1ll fJUlll t"rtutn list"d fo n nlnnnshcl't 
Particulars 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 

Fair value of c Ian assets 

Net defined benefit asset recoenised in Bahrnce Sheet 

h: tl' ~1c1unrl:~J a..<11rn mn1fon~ 

Particulars 

Discount rate (p a) 

Salary escalation rate (pa) 

Mortality table 

Withdrawal rate 

O lltl'orv of nhm nssc·u 
Parliculars 

Insurer Manau.ed funds 

Total nlan assels 

Sensitivily analysis for signilicant assumptions is as shown below 

As al March 31, 2022 

(32 37) 
101 52 

3 28 
(0 511 

71 .92 

As al March 31, 2022 

451 53 
511 34 

59.81 

As at March 31, 2022 

6.80'/o 
10,0\l'/o 

IALMt2012-14) IJ l1 

J . OM~ 

As at Morch 31, 2022 

511.34 
511.34 

The following table summarises the impact in absolute terms on the reported defined benefit obligation al the end or 
the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the discount rate and salary escalation rate 

Particulars As ;H March 31, 2022 

o.s•/o increase lo.5% decrease 
Defined benefit obligation due to sensitivity in discount rate 418 82 1 487 68 
Defined benefit obli~ation due to sensitivity in salarv escalation rate 486 56 419 45 

Projecled Plan Cash Flow 
As at March 31, 2022 

Particulttrs Senior Staff Junior StalT 

Within the next I 2 months (next annual reporting period) 4 36 I 23 
Bet ween 2 and S years 32 70 10 89 
Between 5 and 10 years 57 58 19 10 
Beyond IO years 751 44 803.47 
Total Expecled Pavmenls 846,08 834.69 

Not• J4 · Oth•r cun-•nt llnbllllll'.I 
Particulars As al March 31, 2022 

Statutory and olher liabilities 449 36 
Refund liability 6 83 
Advance from customers 41 41 
Tolal Other liabilities 497.60 

As al Mnrch 31, 2021 

0 00 
(4 32) 
(0 60) 
(0 23) 
· ~ . 1 ;;1 

As at March 31, 2021 

267,61 
445 68 
178,o? 

As at March 31, 2021 

6 80% 
1000% 

IALM(2012-14) Ul1 

3 00% 

As at March 31, 2021 

445 68 
445.68 

As at March 31. 2021 

0.5% increue lo,5% de.crease 

247301 290 04 
289 25 247 78 

Mal ~hirrh JI, 2021 

St'nio.r Sta.ff Junior Staff 
2 19 0 37 

18 26 3 89 
29 57 6 85 

585 16 273 39 
635.18 284.50 

As at March 31, 2021 

243 36 
14 23 
7 11 

264.70 

This space has been intentionally left blank 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 15: Revenue From Operations 

Th e comminy d h ti 1 f erv1es t e o I.ow ing types o revenue : 
Particular 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
-Sale of services 
Total revenue from oprations 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2022 31,2021 

8,789.90 994.04 
8,789.90 994.04 

The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations . 

R T . econcl iat10n 0 f . h revenue reco~n 1 se1 wit contra t 1>r1Ce 
Particular Year ended March Year ended March 

31,2022 31, 2021 
Gross collections as per contracted price 13,640.14 1,816.06 
Deductions for: 
Contract liabilities- Insurance premium 4,017.83 .581.69 
Net cancellation 832.41 240.33 
Revenue from continuing operations 8,789.90 994.04 

Note 16: Other income 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31, 2022 31.2021 

Net fair value gain of financial assets measured at fair value 9.94 7.79 
through profit and loss 
Interest income from fixed deposits 4.86 5.13 
Business support service - 36.83 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 16.16 4.39 
Total other income 30.96 54.14 

Note 17: Employee benefits expense 

Particular Notes Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2022 31,2021 

Salaries, wages and bonus 5,490.52 2,622.93 

Contribution to provident and other funds 198.22 102.08 
Share based payment to employees 27 378.76 90.16 
Gratuity 13 95.76 52.80 
Staff welfare expenses 255.19 29.82 
Total employee benefit expense 6,418.45 2,897.79 

This space has been intentionally left blank 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 18: Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particular 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 
Amortisation of intangible assets 
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 

Note 19: Other expenses 

Particular 

Business support expenses (refer note 23) 
Sales commission 
Sub-contracting expenses 
Customer Service claims/provider claims 
Fees for Technical services* 
Brand and marketing 
Communication charges 
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Travel and conveyance 
Office expenses 
Legal and professional fees 
Recruitment expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Rates and taxes 
Payments to auditors (refer note I 9(a) below) 
Total other expenses 

Notes 

3 
4 
5 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2022 31,2021 

201.42 100.34 
166.82 108.93 
888.03 403.27 

1,256.27 612.54 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2022 31,2021 

668.09 1,347.29 
5,659.06 851.09 
2,574.66 620.70 
1,588.00 75.67 

964.03 446.84 
961.97 166.50 
683.88 169.58 
430.77 14.19 
204.57 20.92 

87.60 11.85 
75.06 23.63 
93.87 28.62 
13.81 18.00 
7.98 1.71 
6.29 7.19 
5.00 1.00 

14,024.64 3,804.78 
*Development costs that are not eligible for capitalisation have been expensed in the period incurred and recognised in other 
expenses 

Note 19(a): Details of payments to auditors 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31, 2022 31,2021 

Payment to auditor 
As auditor: 
Audit fee 5.00 1.00 
Out of pocket expenses - -
Total payments to auditor 5.00 1.00 

Note 20: Finance costs 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2022 31,2021 

Interest expense on leased liabilities 66.45 47.48 
Finance costs expensed 66.45 47.48 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limiled 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 2 l: Fair value measurements 

Fh!nn chil Jn:'itruuu: . .nts h"' ~iH(!l!ur:v 
Particular 

Financial assets 
Investments 

- Mutual funds 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Security deposits 
Other financial assets 
Total linancial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Lease liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total linancial liabilities 

As at MHch 31, 2022 
Fair Value 

FVPL FVOCI 
Amortised 

Cost 

260 78 
- 889.43 
- 1,599,66 
- 306 88 

25 00 

260.78 - 2 820.97 

- 2,354 56 

- 1,373 93 

- 1.295 71 

- - 5 024.20 

As at March 31 2021 
Carrying Fair Value Carrying 

Value 
FVPL FVOCI 

Amortised Value 
Cost 

260 78 100 87 - - 100 87 
889 43 - 225 05 225 05 

1,599 66 315 96 315.96 
306 88 - 4064 40 64 

25 00 64 88 64 88 
3,081.75 100.87 - 646.53 747.40 

2,354 )6 -, 1,101 20 1,101 20 
1,373 93 - 390 35 390 35 
1.295 71 869 50 869 50 
5 024.20 - - 2,361.05 2,361.05 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments. 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale 
The fair values of the quoted mutual funds are based on price quotations at the reporting date The fair value of obligations under leases is estimated by discounting future cash flows using 
rates cWTently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities 

Note 22: Earnings per share 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted averag~ number of Equity shares outstanding during the year 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the deemed equity, if any) by the weighted average 

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into 

Equity shares 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Particulars As at March As at March 
31,2022 31,2021 

A) Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company: (12,944 95) (6,31441) 
B) Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earnings 25 00 25 00 

:per share 
Earnin2 per Share !Basic} (Rs) (517.80) (2.52.58) 
C) Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings 1,649,59 564 25 
.Per share 
Earnin2 per Share (Diluted) (Rs)• 1517.80) 1252,58) 
*DJ1uted Ewnlng per s.hnre 1S same as Basic earning per share smce potential equity shares ts havmg anti-dilutive impact 

This space has been intentionally left blank 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limite4.I 
Notes lo Finand1ll slntemenls fo1• thc .vca1•cnclet.l l\t;u·ch 31 1 2022 
(All amounls in lNR lakhs, unless olherwise staled) 

Nole 23: Disclosul'e or lrnnsaclions wi111 1·elatecJ parlies as requii'ed by lhe Indian Accounting Standard ~24: 

Name or related party and nalure or relationship Nature or transaction 

Holdine. company: 

Bajaj Finserv Ltd (Holding company) Conlribulion from group in nature of equity 
Business Support Charges-
Tangible assets purchased 
Reimbursemenl 
Reimbursement for share based paymenl 

Subsidin1ies nnd follow subsidiary: 
Bajaj Allianz General insurance Co Ltd Insurance premium paid for employees during the year 
(Fellow subsidiary) Advance premium paid 

Insurance premium paid for master policy agreement 
Closing balance of advance for master policy 
Revenue 

Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co Ltd Insurance premium paid for employees during the year 
(fellow subsidiary) Advance premium paid 

Insurance premium paid for master policy agreement 
Closing balance of float advance 
Rent expenses 
Security deposil paid 
Reimbursement 

Bajaj Finance Ltd Subvention cost charged during the year 
(Fellow subsidiary) Business support services received 

Business support services provided 
Tangible assets purchased 
Marketing Fees receivable during 1he period 
Markeling fees payable durin~ the year 
Outstanding payable balance at year end 
Reimbursement 

Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited Business Support Charges 
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Bajaj Holdings and Investment Ltd Reimbursement 
(Associate of holding co) 

Key ManHe,e1ial Personnel 
Devang Mody (Whole Time Director) Remuneration including perquisites 

All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms' length basis excluding lax impacl 

Mnnh31 2022. M:"lrd1 .!J 2021 

Transaclion Value Oulstanding Transaclion Value Outstanding 
for the year ent.led amounls c:111·1ied for lhe year ended amounts c<1rried 
Mn1·ch J 11 2022 in the Balance March JI, 2021 in the 8;1)ance 

Sheet Sheet 

( 15,000 00) (24,000 00) (5,500 00) (9,000 00) 
668 09 1,332 90 

3 I 05 18 34 . 006 
702 70 221 12 

35 84 18 69 
57 62 0 86 

1,536 55 239 35 
54 57 27 43 

(397 58) 399 14 

41 68 - 8 32 
I 26 I 17 

1,678 42 224 43 
234 37 60 17 

39 76 - -
23 11 

0 36 . 

188 05 . 24 06 
. 14 39 . 
. (36 83) 34 26 

25 14 . 0 77 (0 81) 
(168,17) 9 63 (14 51) 5 92 
5,425 13 (1,07664) 755 58 (706 25) 

(26 01) %18 
221 91 

24 20 . 

0 04 (0,02) . 

1,035 57 . 101 92 5 27 

Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship where control exists have been disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions between the relaled parties 

ln other cases, disclosure have been made only when there have been transactions wi1h those parties 

Note 24: Capital Manae.ement 

Objectives, policies and processes or capital rnanngement 
The Company has no capital other than Equity The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capitaJ requirements 

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating through short term/ liquid mutual funds and short term fix deposits depending on economic conditions in line with lhe guidelines set out by the management 
Safety of capilal is of prime impor1ance to ensure availability of funds and liquidity for operations [nvestment objective is to provide safety on the surplus funds, 

l'at1irn1Rt'S As at March 31, As at March 31 1 

2022 2020 
E qu1ly 3,51202 1,528 89 
Adjustmenls: 

Tangible and other assets (5,481 19) (3,234.08) 
Working caoital 2,229 95 1,806 06 

lnveslmenls in Mutm•I Funds 260.78 100.87 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 25: Fair Value Hierarchy 

I. Quantitative Disclosures 
a. Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets 

March 31, 2022 March 31 , 2021 
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using 

Particulars Quoted prices Significant Quoted prices Significant 
in active observable inputs in active observable 
markets (Level (Level 2) markets (Level inputs 
1) 1) (Level 2) 

Investments held for trading under FVTPL 260.78 - 100.87 
Total 260.78 - 100.87 

b. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 
Management considers the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements, except as per note 
above. 

2. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

-
-

The principal financial liabilities of company comprise trade and other payables, lease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial 
liabilities is to finance the operations of company and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The principal financial assets of 
company include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The company is 
exposed to market risk, credit risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the long term lease payments. 

The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operations in short term deposits with banks and mutual funds. Bank deposits are 
made for a short term period ofupto 12 months carry interest rate as per prevailing market interest rate. Considering these bank deposits 
are short term in nature, there is no significant interest rate risk. 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The risk of changes in foreign exchange rates for company relates primarily to the operating activities (when expense is 
denominated in a foreign currency). Loss booked due to fluctuation in exchange rate amounts to Rs 3.92 lakhs in FY 21-22 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing 
activities, including short term deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments. 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the finance department in accordance with the guidance 
from holding company. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties keeping view of credit risk associated 
with each counterparty. 



Bnini Finse1 v Henlth Limilcd 
Notes lo Finnnri1d statements for the year ended M1uch 31, 2022 

(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless olhcmisc staled) 

Note 25 continued: LiQuiditv Risk 

Prudcnl liquidit~ risk in;magcmcnl implies maintaining sufficient cash and nwkctablc sccurilics and a\ a ilabilit~ of funding to meet oblii;alions \\hen due and to close out mark.cl positions Milnagcmcnt monitors forecasts of 1hc 
liquidit~ posiJion of com pan~ and cash and cash cqui' al en ts on the basis or expected c<1sl1 no\\S 

The table bclo\\ shows an anal.\ sis of as~c l , .nnd b~tnh r fos: tm:ih~l ( m.1 ~mit' tuwh:s1sJ l'1L"C(]rdmi.! LO \\ ltt11 IJ11,;\ *" w l'lli.' r«c\1:1\al or seukd 
:.1J . l\1n1'-21 31-Mai-21 

Pn1·1Icu l~ n Within 12 months Arter 12 months T otn1 Within 12 month Arter 12 months Total 

Assets 
Propcrt~·. plant and equipment 830 5<• JG056 416 33 <11(.33 

Right or Use Asset 1,31).S 49 1.395 49 363 02 3(,3 02 

Other inlangible assets . 2 O:'i4 03 2.054 03 1,445 70 1.445 70 

Intangible asscls under development 201 29 201 29 

Othernsscts xx; 21 1.7x; 09 2.670 30 209 83 1,131 40 1.341 22 

Current lax asscls g] 60 83 60 2 63 2 63 
lnvcslmenls 260 78 260 78 100 87 100 87 

Trade receivables g89.43 !:189.i.13 225 05 225 05 

Cash ai1d cash equh alenls I 599 66 1.59966 315 96 31; 9G 

Security deposits 306 K8 30688 4064 4064 

Other Financial assets 25_00 25 00 64 RR f1J R& 

Tu1!1 I A" rb 3.660.0R 6.455.65 10,115.73 916.59 J .601 ,01 4.$17.60 
Liabilities 
Provisions 1.081 90 1,081 90 362 96 362 96 
Other current liabilities 497 60 497 60 264 70 264 70 

Trade payables 2.354 56 2,354 56 I.IOI 20 . 1,290 11 

Lease liabililies 399 48 974 46 1,373 94 94 39 295 96 390 35 

Other financial liabilities 1.29-' 71 . 1.295 71 8G950 . 680 59 
Total Liabilitie.~ 5 619,25 974 ,46 6 603.11 2.692.75 295.96 2.988.71 

Net n 969.111 5.481.19 3 512.02 11.776.16\ 3 '"<.05 1.S2R.R9 

Note 26: Capital and other commitments 

(a) Capital Commitments 

Particular Year ended Manh 31, 2022 Year ended March JJ, 
2021 

Capital commitments lestimatcd amount of contrncts remaining to be executed 47 99 217 62 
on capital account not provided for (net or ad\ anecs)J 

(b) Other Commitments 

l1111·1ltuh1r y,.1...-c:udc.•d March 31, 2022 cucndtd l\1RJ"fh JJ , 
lOll 

.10 00 51)Jlll 
•tssued ag.illll!ll bank deposit or Rs 25 lakhs 

Note 27: Share-based payments (Emplovee option plan) 

The company has adopted the emplo) ee slack options plnn, 2018 (ESOP scheme) fonnulalcd b) its hold ins company, for its employees and employees of its subsidiaries, pursuant lo lhc resolution passed b~ shareholders at Lhc 
annual general meeting The employee stock options plan is designed lo provide incenti\e to the emplO)CCS or the company lo dcli\'cr long lerm returns and is an equity setllcd plan The ESOP scheme is administered b~ the 
board and holding company shares will be issued under the scheme to employees Participation in the plun is al Lhe Boards's discretion and no indi\ idual has a contractual right Lo participate in the pion or to rccci\ e any 
guaranteed benefits Options granted under ESOP scheme would \'csl in not less than one year and not more lhan four ~cars from the dale of grant of the options The board of Lhe company has apprO\cd grant "ith related 
'csting conditions_ Vesting of Lhe options would be subje<:l to continuous cmploymcnl with the company and hence Lhe options would' est wiLh the passage or time Fair v.olue of options is reimbursed lo Lhe parent comp<lll~ 
amounting lo Rs 702 70 lakhs (FY2 I-Rs 221 I 2 lacs) which is amortised O\'Cf t.he \'csting period 

Once vested, lhe options remains exercisable for a period of nine years Options granted under the pion ore for no considcralion and carry no di\'idend or voting rights, On exercise, each option is COii\ crtible inLo one equity share 
of the holding company 

Particulars 

Opening asset of share based payment transaction 
Payment toward share based payment 
fapcnsc arising from share based payment transaction 
Closin~ asset or share based oavmcnl transaction 

Below is summary of options granted under the plan 

Particulars Vear ended March 31 , 2022 
Opening balance 13.850 00 
Granted during the year 20,975 00 
Exercised during lhc year 1.113.00 
forfei!.i:d d.urin~ Lhc. vcar 
Ooslt1Phal11nr:r JJ,711.00 

Veer ended March 31, 2022 

IJO 96 
702 70 
378 76 
4,54 QO 

Year ended March 31. 2021 

lJ.8;0 oo 

. 
IJ ,BS0,00 

Year ended March JI, 
2021 

221 .12 
90,16 

130.% 



Fair value or options J?ranlcd 
Trunchc I 

The fair value ot gronl date or oplions grnnlcd on Moy 21, 2020 w11s Rs 1,596.56. The foir volue 11L gr11nl dote is delcrmincd using the block scholcs model, which t~kcs inlo accounl lhc exercise price, 1he tenn or option, 1he 
shnre price (If grant date a11d expected vnhHilily of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield 1md the risk free interest rnre for !hi! tenn orthe oplion 

Tnnchc2 
The fair value at gronl date of options granted on April 28, 2021 was Rs J,350.16. The fair vnlue al g:ranl c\atc is dctcrmincc\ using 1he h\ack scholcs model, which lakes intu account 1hc CKC1cise price, the term or option, the 
share price at grant date and expccled volatility orthc underlying share, the expected dividend yield t111d lhe risk fTec inLeresl rnle for the Lenn or the option 

The moc\cl inputs for options granted during lhe year ended March JI, 2021 

a) Options granted fo1 no consideration and 'esting period is 
b) Exercise price 
c) Granl date 
d) Exercise dBlc 
c) Share price at grnnt date 
f) Expected price volaliliLy or the company's shares: 
g) Expected dividend yiclJ 
h) risk free ln1crcs1 rele 

Tranche I 
1-4 years 
Rs 4.702 .05 per opHon 
May21, 2020 
May 20, 2024 
Rs 4,702.05 
35.56% 
005% 
6,35% 

Tranche2 
1-4 years 
Rs 10.091 ,_\5 per option 
Ap1· 28, 2021 
Apr 27, 2025 
Rs 10,091.35 
34 ,64% 
005% 
5 69% 

Expected price volalilily is based on hisloric volatility (based on remaining lire or options), adjusted for expected chan£es ~o fulurc volatility due lo publicly available information 

Note 28 : Conllnj?cnt 1111.hllltlc! 
The comp;my ha.c; no contingent liabilities in cutTcnl year and previous year 

Note 29 : Acldlllonal Reguhllory Requlremenl! 

l)Rallos 

Ratio Numcriuor 

(al Current Ra1io Current Assets 

(b) Return on Equity Ratio Net Income 
le) fmd.;-11:t:-ch·nhlc~ llllllUH.!r n1IJO Revenue 

{cl) Trade pn)11b\cs turnover rntio rurchnscs 

{c) Ncl cnpit:lf turnover rntio Rcvcuuc 

(f)Nel prol"it 1ntio Net ptofit 

(g) Return on Cn1litn1 emplu)"Xt E.1ming before inhm~sl and tax 
hl Return on invc,~tincnt F.w ninl! before inlt:rc'il Wld lil.X 

II) Relntlnm~hlp with slruck off cnmp11nle1 
Curr't! !\'Ill 

~r11il\' of •lruC'l4 n1T<:ompnnr N11lure Mlr1:1nt11(t lfl1l't wllh 

NII. 

j\':uncr orslruck orrcompony 

NIL 

Denominator 

Current liabililics 

Shareholder's Equity 
Average necnu11ts 1eccivablc 

Avcrngc accounts payahlc 

WorkingCnpital 

Nt!1sale.c; 

Capital t!mployed 
Avcrnne Orn:ralin!! u.sscl'ii. 

Rolonce outstanding 

lh111111cC" oui.¥11mdl11s:, 

As at 3Jsl l\larch, 2022 As at 3 Isl o/111 Variance 
March. 2021 

065 034 YI% 

(3.69) 
15 77 

7,95 

(4.46) 

(1 ,47) 

(2 ,R9J 
(177) 

Relellom1hlp with the 
tr.nick o(( t l)ITI Utll\' 

ltl'latlonJhlp wtrh lht' 
jtf'Utk urrtom Ill 

(4 13) 11% 
• 79 79% 

fj 10 ZR% 

(0 15) 2781% 

(635) 11% 

(J 46) 17% 
1154) 11511' 

t:xple1111Uon 

Increase in invcslmcnls has resulted in 100 
improvement or the ratio 

Monthly modt: collt:clion leading to 
increased ratio 
Increased credit period has resulted in the 
decline orihc ratio 
l11creased revenue leading change i11 ratio 

Improved margins lending improvement 
mralio 

iii) no runds Im e been advanced or lonncd 01· invested (either from boi1·owcd runds or share premium or any other sources or kind or rund~) by the Company 10 or in any other perso11(s) or enLity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("lntcnncdiaries"), with rhc understanding, whclhcr recorded in writing or olherwisc. thal the lntem1t!diary shell. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons •ir entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or 011 behalf or Lhc Company ("Ultim11lc flcnclici:ll'ics") 01 provide uny guarautcc, sccurily or t~ like on behalf of 1hc Ullimalc Ocncficiaric~ 

h•) no fi.tnds l11we hcen rl!ceived hy the Company from rtny person(s) or enlilY(ics), including foreign entilies ("Funding Parties"). with !he w1derstanding, whether rei:onted in writing nr otherwise, lhAl lhe Company shall, 
whclhcr, dircc1ly or inditttlly, lend or Invest in other persons or entities id en Lilied in any manne1 whn1socver by 01 on bcholr or1hc Funding Party ("Ultimnlc Bcncliciarics") or provicl...: any guarantee, security or the like on 
hchnlrofthe Ultimate Be11efici11ries, 

The accompnnylng notes nre lntegrnl p~rt or the nn11nch1l stntemenfs 
As per our report of e"en date 
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